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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
the Municipal Legislature 
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado 
Dorado, Puerto Rico 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado, Puerto Rico 
(Municipality), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Municipality’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.   
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 

Summary of Opinions  
 

Opinion Unit  Type of Opinion 
Governmental Activities  Qualified 
Business-type Activities  Unmodified 
General Fund  Unmodified 
Special Revenue Fund-Head Start Program  Unmodified 
Capital Projects Fund  Unmodified 
Debt Service Fund  Unmodified 
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information  Unmodified 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 
Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities 
 

The Municipality’s pension plan administrator has not provided the audited actuarial and financial information necessary 
for the proper recognition and reporting of its net pension liability as of June 30, 2015. As a result, management has not 
complied with the accounting and financial reporting requirements for pensions that are provided to the employees of state 
and local governmental employers through pension plans trusts that comply with the criteria set forth in the GASB 
Statement No. 68. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that governmental 
employers whose employees are provided with defined benefit pensions through cost-sharing multiple-employer pension 
plans recognize a liability and pension expense and report deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions for its proportionate share of the collective net pension liability, pension expense, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources reported by the pension plan trust. The amount by which this 
departure would affect the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position 
of the Municipality’s governmental activities has not been determined.   
 

In addition, the Municipality’s financial statements do not disclose the descriptive information about the pension plans 
through which the pensions are provided required by the GASB Statement No. 68 for cost-sharing employers. In our 
opinion, disclosure of this information is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities” 
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
governmental activities of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado, as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in financial 
position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Unmodified Opinions  
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado, Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position 
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 

Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis on pages 4 through 13 and Budgetary Comparison information on page 66, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The Autonomous Municipality of Dorado (the Municipality) was founded in the year 1842. The 
Municipality‘s governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body.  It is governed by a Mayor 
and a fourteen-member Municipal Legislature who are elected for a four-year term. 
 
The Municipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and welfare, community 
development, education, and other miscellaneous services. 
 
The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the Municipality conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (“USGAAP”) as applicable to governmental units. 
 

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34, “Basic 
Financial Statements and Management’s and Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.” This 
Statement, known as the Reporting Model, provides for the most significant change in financial reporting for 
state and local governments in over 20 years and affects the way the Municipality prepares and presents 
financial information. The Statement was adopted as of July 1, 2002. In addition to this Statement, GASB 
Statement No. 37, “Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and 
Local Governments: Omnibus” and GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures” 
have been adopted and are reflected in these financial statements.  
 

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization of local government 
infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement permits an optional four-year delay for 
implementation to fiscal year 2007. The Municipality implemented the capitalization of infrastructure since July 
1, 2006. 
 

In March 2009, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.55, The Hierarchy of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 55), and GASB Statement No. 
56, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in the AICPA Statements on 
Auditing Standards (GASB No. 56). 
 

GASB No. 55 incorporated the hierarchy of USGAAP for state and local governments into the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) authoritative literature. The requirements in this Statement codify all 
USGAAP for state and local governments so that they derive from a single source. 
 

GASB No. 56 incorporated into the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) authoritative 
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants’ Statements on Auditing Standards. This Statement addressed three issues not included in 
the authoritative literature that establishes accounting principles-related party transactions, going concern 
considerations, and subsequent events. 

 

In fiscal year 2012, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB No. 54), which modified the interpretations of 
certain terms within the definition of the special revenue funds and the types of activities the Municipality may 
choose to report in those funds. GASB No. 54 also clarified the capital projects fund type definition for better 
alignment with the needs of preparers and users. Definitions of other governmental fund types were also 
modified for clarity and consistency.  
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

The provisions of the GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, an amendment of 
Statements No. 14 and 34, were considered in the evaluation of the potential component units. This 
statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of components units in the financial reporting entity and 
amends the criteria for reporting component units as if they were part of the primary government under 
certain circumstances. 
 
The GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements (GASB 62), incorporates into the GASB’s 
authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance included in FASB pronouncements, 
which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, and eliminates the criteria to apply post-
November 30, 1989 FASB pronouncements that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 
 
In the previous year, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting 
of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position establishing a new 
statement of net position format that reports separately all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, and net position (which is the net residual amount of the other elements). The 
Statement requires deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources to be reported 
separately from assets and liabilities.  
 

The basic financial statements of the Municipality have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles as applied to local governmental units in the United States of America (US GAAP).  
 

A. Financial reporting entity 
 

The financial reporting entity included in this report consists of the financial statements of the 
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado (primary government) and organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. In addition, the primary government may determine, through 
exercise of management’s professional judgment, that the inclusion of an organization that does not meet 
the financial accountability criteria is necessary in order to prevent the reporting entity’s financial 
statements from being misleading. Other entities should be evaluated as potential component units if 
they are closely related to, or financially integrated with, the primary government. It is a matter of 
professional judgment to determine whether the nature and the significance of a potential component 
unit’s relationship with the primary government warrant inclusion in the reporting entity. An entity should 
be considered a component unit if meets any of the following three conditions: 

 

1. The primary government appoints a voting majority of the entity’s governing body, and either: 
 

 A financial benefit/ burden exists between the primary government and the entity or 

 The primary government can impose its will on the entity. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

A. Financial reporting entity (continued) 
 

2. The entity is fiscally dependent on the primary government and there is a financial benefit/burden 
between the primary government and the entity. 
 

3. It would be necessary to include the entity as a component unit since the primary government’s 
financial statements would be misleading without it. 

 
In addition, “special criteria” applies when evaluating a legally separate, tax-exempt organization as 
potential component unit. Specifically, such entities must be treated as component units if they meet all of 
the following criteria: 
 

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost 
entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or its constituents. 
 

2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise 
access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization. 
 

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific primary 
government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are 
significant to the primary government. 

 
Legally separate, tax-exempt organizations that do not meet the above special criteria should still be 
included as a component unit if the financial statements of the primary government would be misleading 
without them. 
 
There are two methods of presentation of the component unit in the financial statements: (a) blending the 
financial data of the component units’ balances and transactions and (b) discrete presentation of the 
component unit’s financial data. When a component unit functions as an integral part of the primary 
government, its data is blended with those of the primary government (“blended component units”). That 
is, the component unit’s funds are treated just as though they were funds of the primary government with 
one exception: the general fund. Component units should be reported as blended if meets any of the 
following criteria: 
 

1. The component unit’s governing body is substantively the same as the governing body of the 
primary government and there is either:  
 

 A financial benefit/ burden exists between the primary government and the entity or 

 Management of the primary government has operational responsibility for the component 
unit 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

A. Financial reporting entity (continued) 
 

2. The component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the primary government or 
otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the primary government. 

 
3. The component unit’s debt is expected to be paid by the primary government. 
 

Otherwise, the component unit should be presented as discrete. Those component units do not function 
as an integral part of the primary government and its data is presented discretely (separately) from the 
data of the primary government (“discretely component units”). Legally separate, tax-exempt 
organizations that meet the special criteria should be included as discretely component units. 
 
Based on the above criteria, there are no potential component units which should be included as part of 
the financial statements  
 

B.  Financial statement presentation, measurement focus and basis of accounting 
 

The financial report of the Municipality consists of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), 
basic financial statements and required supplementary information other than the MD&A. Following is a 
summary presentation of each, including the measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement 
focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial statements. 
Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus: 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
It provides a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the Municipality’s financial activities. 

 
Basic financial statements 
 
The basis financial statements include both the government-wide and fund financial statements. Both 
sets of statements categorize primary activities as governmental type, which are primarily supported by 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues. 

 
Government-wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 
 
The government-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of 
Activities. These statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus, which 
refers to the reporting of all of the net position available to the governmental unit for the purpose of 
providing goods and services to the public. The statements are reported on the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses in the period in which the 
associated liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Fiduciary activities, if any, 
whose resources are not available to finance government programs, are excluded from the government-
wide statements. The effect of inter-fund activities is eliminated. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

B.  Financial statement presentation, measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued) 
 

The Statement of Net Position presents all of the reporting entity’s non-fiduciary assets, deferred 
outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference reported as net position. The Statement of 
Activities reports revenues and expenses in a format that focus on the net cost of each function of the 
Municipality.  Both the gross and net cost of the function, which is otherwise being supported by the 
general government revenues, is compared to the revenues generated directly by the function. This 
Statement reduces gross direct expenses, including depreciation, by related program revenues, 
operating and capital grants, and contributions. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function. As a policy, indirect expenses are not allocated in the Statement of Activities. 
Program revenues must be directly associated with the function. 
 
The types of transactions included as program revenues are: charges for services, fees, rent, licenses 
and permits; operating grants which include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or 
capital) grants; and capital grants which are capital-specific grants. Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all 
taxes. Property taxes (imposed nonexchange transactions) are recognized as revenues in the year for 
which they are levied and municipal license taxes and sales and use taxes (derived tax revenues) when 
the underlying exchange has occurred and time requirements are met. Revenues on both operating and 
capital grants are recognized when all eligibility requirements (including time requirements) imposed by 
the provider have been met. For certain expenditure-driven grants, revenue is recognized after 
allowable expenditures are incurred. 
 
The Municipality reports unearned revenues in the government-wide statements. Unearned revenues 
arise when resources are received before the Municipality has a legal claim to them (such as advances 
of derived tax revenues) or before applicable eligibility requirements are met (in case of certain federal 
expenditure-driven grants if resources are received before allowable expenditures are incurred). 
 
In subsequent periods, when the Municipality has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for 
unearned revenues is removed from the statement of net position and the revenue is recognized. 
 
Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 
 

The financial transactions of the Municipality are recorded in individual funds, each of which are 
considered an independent fiscal entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, fund equity, 
revenues and expenditures. Funds are segregated according to their intended purpose which helps 
management in demonstrating compliance with legal, financial and contractual provisions. 
Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions of the Municipality are 
financed. The governmental fund statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances with one column for the general fund, one for each major 
fund and one column combining all non-major governmental funds. Major funds are determined based 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

B.  Financial statement presentation, measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued) 
 

on a minimum criteria, that is, a percentage of the assets and deferred outflows; liabilities and deferred 
inflows; revenues or expenditures or based on the Municipality’s official’s criteria if the fund is 
particularly important to financial statement users.  
 

The Municipality reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund- This is the general operating fund of the Municipality. It is used to account for and 
report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. 
 
Special Revenue Fund- Head Start- This fund is used to account for and report revenues sources 
received from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services that are restricted for expenditure 
for the activities performed under the Head Start program. These activities consist of providing services 
to pregnant women and children (birth to 5 years-old) and their families that are under the poverty line 
or are eligible for public assistance. 
 
Capital Projects Fund – State and Local Grants – is a major governmental fund used to account for 
and report financial resources received from the Commonwealth Government that are restricted or 
committed to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital 
facilities, including those outlays financed by the general obligation bond proceeds.  
 
Debt Service Fund – this fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted 
for expenditure for the payment of principal and interest of general obligation bonds and notes issued 
by the Municipality. This fund accounts for the resources of three individual funds: 1) “CAE Fund,” the 
sinking fund which accounts for the 2% of property taxes collected by the Municipal Revenue Collection 
Center (CRIM); 2) “Municipal Redemption Fund,” the sinking fund that accounts for the 0.2% of the 
0.5% collected from the sales and use tax that is, by law,  deposited  in  the Governmental 
Development Bank (GDB) for the financing of loans to Municipalities; and 3) operational loans that are 
paid from the general fund’s operating revenues.   
 
The other governmental funds of the Municipality account for grants and other resources whose use is 
restricted to a particular purpose. 
 
The FFS are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified-
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method of accounting, revenues are recognized when they are 
susceptible to accrual (i.e. both measurable and available).  
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

B. Financial statement presentation, measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued) 
 
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Municipality considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period 
 
Revenues susceptible to accrual include property taxes, recognized as revenue in the year for which 
they are levied; municipal license taxes and sales and use taxes, recognized when the underlying 
exchange has occurred and time requirements are met; and interest. In applying the susceptible to 
accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, revenues are recognized when all eligibility 
requirements (including time requirements) imposed by the provider have been met and revenue 
becomes available. There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues. In the first case, on 
expenditure-driven grants, monies must be expended on the specific project or purpose (eligibility 
requirement), before any amounts are paid to the Municipality. Revenue is, therefore, recognized as 
expenditures are incurred to the extent available. In the other cases, monies are virtually unrestricted 
and are generally revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. In 
these cases, revenues are recognized at the time of receipt or earlier, if the susceptible-to-accrual 
criterion is met. Licenses and permits, charges for services, rent, fines and miscellaneous revenues 
are generally recorded as revenues when received or are recognized earlier if the susceptible-to-
accrual criterion is met. 
 

The Municipality reports unearned revenues in the governmental funds statements. Unearned 
revenues arise when resources are received before the Municipality has a legal claim to them (such 
as advances of derived tax revenues) or before applicable eligibility requirements are met (in case of 
certain federal expenditure-driven grants, if resources are received before allowable expenditures are 
incurred). In subsequent periods, when the Municipality has a legal claim to the resources, the liability 
for unearned revenues is removed from the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 
 
Long-term assets and those assets that will not be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities are 
generally not accounted for in the accompanying Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds of the FFS. 
Likewise, long-term liabilities (generally, those unmatured that will not require the use of current 
financial resources to pay them) are also not accounted for in the FFS. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

B.  Financial statement presentation, measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued) 
 

Since the FFS are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the GWFS, 
reconciliation is necessary to explain the adjustments needed to transform the FFS into the GWFS. This 
reconciliation is part of the financial statements.  

 
Notes to financial statements 

 

The notes to financial statements provide information that is essential to an user’s understanding of the 
basic financial statements. 

 

Required Supplementary Information (RSI) 
 
The Required Supplementary Information consists of the Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General 
Fund, the Schedule of the Municipality’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the 
Schedule of Municipality Contributions, as required by GASB. 

 
C.  Financial reporting presentation 

 
The accounts of the Municipality are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity.  The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.  Fund 
types are as follows: 

 
General Fund – Is the Municipality main operating fund used to account for and report all financial and 
reported resources and governmental activities, except for those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. It is presumed that the Municipality’s governmental activities have been reported in the general fund 
except for transactions for which one of the following compelling reasons has required the use of another 
fund: (1) legal requirements, (2) USGAAP requirements or (3) the demands of sound financial 
administration requiring the use of a governmental fund other than the general fund. Its revenues consist 
mainly of taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental, charges for services and other. 

 
Special Revenue Funds – Is a governmental fund used to account for and report the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources (other than trusts for individuals, private organizations, or other governments or 
for major capital projects) that are legally restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes 
other than debt service or capital projects. Resources restricted or committed to expenditure for purposes 
normally financed from the general fund are generally accounted for in the general fund provided that all 
applicable legal requirements can be appropriately satisfied and the use of special revenue funds is not 
required unless they are legally mandated. 
 
Capital Projects Funds – is a governmental fund used to account for and report financial resources that 
are restricted or committed to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of  
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

C. Financial reporting presentation (continued) 
 

major capital facilities, including those outlays financed by the general obligation bond proceeds (other 
than those financed by proprietary funds or in trust funds for individuals, private organizations, or other 
governments). 
 
The use of the capital projects funds has been limited to only for major capital acquisitions, construction 
or improvement activities that would distort financial resources trend data if not reported separately from 
the other Municipality’s operating activities. The routine purchases of minor capitalizable assets (such as 
furniture, office equipment, vehicles and other minor capital assets or improvements) have been reported 
in the governmental fund from which financial resources were used for the payment. 

 
Debt Service Fund – is a major governmental fund used to account for and report for the accumulation 
of financial resources that are restricted for, and the payment of, principal and interest for: (1) bonds 
payable for which debt service payments are legally mandated to be accounted for in a debt service fund 
and (2) certain special long-term obligations for which the Municipality is been accumulating financial 
resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments maturing in future years. 
 
Proprietary Funds 

 

 Enterprise Fund – The enterprise fund statements consist of Statement of Net Position, Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows. This fund accounts for 
exchange like transactions, like private enterprises and its operations are intended to be self-supporting 
through charges to users. These statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus, and full accrual basis. The Municipality has only one enterprise fund, the Commercial Pavilion 
Rafael Hernández Colón, whose main operating activity is rental of commercial spaces. 

 
D. Deposits and investments 
 

The Municipality’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Nonnegotiable 
certificates of deposits with original maturity of more than three months are considered time deposits as 
required by current standards. The Municipality follows the practice of pooling cash of all funds except for 
certain Commonwealth’s grants, restricted funds generally held by outside custodians and federal grants. 
Available pooled cash balance beyond immediate needs is invested in certificates of deposits. Cash and 
cash equivalents related to Commonwealth and Federal grants (including Commonwealth Legislature 
Resolutions) are restricted since their use is limited by applicable agreements or required by law. 
 

The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico authorize the Municipality to invest only in 
obligations of the Commonwealth, obligations of the United States of America, certificates of deposits, 
commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, or in pools of obligations of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, 
which are managed by the GDB. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

E. Restricted assets 
 

Restricted assets are liquid assets which have third-party limitations on their use. Cash and cash 
equivalents related to Commonwealth and Federal grants (including Commonwealth Legislature 
Resolutions) are restricted since their use is limited by applicable agreements or required by law. 
 

Restricted cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund consists of the undisbursed balance of property 
and sales tax collections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico which are restricted for the 
repayment of the Municipality’s general and special obligation bonds and notes as established by law. 
Restricted cash with fiscal agent of the other governmental funds represent the undisbursed proceeds of 
certain bonds, loans or grants which are maintained in a cash custodian account by the GDB or a federal 
government agency. 

 

F. Receivables and due from governmental entities  
 

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are determined, 
based upon past collection experience and current economic conditions. Intergovernmental receivable in 
the general fund represents the balance due from the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) 
resulting from the final settlement; Intergovernmental receivables in the debt service fund represent the 
amounts due from the CRIM resulting from the excess of current year property tax collections over 
current year advances. Intergovernmental receivable in the capital projects fund and in other 
governmental funds represent amounts owed to the Municipality for reimbursement of expenditures 
incurred pursuant to federally funded programs or state funded programs. 

 
G. Interfund receivables and payables 

 
Activities among funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due from/to other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund 
loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other 
outstanding balances among funds are reported as “due from/to other funds”. 
 
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are reported as 
“nonspendable” in the fund balance section of the Balance Sheet to indicate that they are not available 
for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

 
H. Inventory 

  
The Municipality purchases gasoline, oil and other expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost of 
those purchases is recorded as expenditure when incurred in the appropriate fund but the year-end 
inventory is not recorded in the Statement of Net Position, as management believes is not significant. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

I. Capital assets 
 

Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities column in the governmental-wide 
financial statements.  The Municipality defines capital asset as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
more than $100 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are reported at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 

 

Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not 
available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date 
of donation. All capital assets, other than land and construction in progress, are depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the following useful lives 

 

Description Useful Life  
   

Buildings and site improvements 40 years  
Infrastructure 40 years  
Works of art 10 years  
Vehicles 5 years  
Furniture and fixtures 5 years  
Machinery and equipment 3 to 5 years  

 
J. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources  
 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then.  
 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Financial Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  
 
The government has three items that qualify for reporting in this category: 
 

1. Government-mandated or voluntary non-exchange transactions received before the time 
requirements have been met – Federal and state grants received before the beginning of the 
fiscal year to which they pertain are recognized as deferred inflows of resources on both the 
Balance Sheet of the governmental funds and in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. 
The amounts deferred would be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the period in 
which the time requirements are fulfilled.  

 
2. Unavailable revenue reported under the modified-basis of accounting –  Amounts collected 

or to be collected after the availability period are recognized as unavailable revenue in the  
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

J. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources – (Continued) 
 

governmental funds Balance Sheet. The amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) in the period that the amounts become available. Since this deferred inflow 
of resources is the result of the modified-accrual basis of accounting, it is only reported in the 
governmental fund financial statements. 

 
3. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions – Amounts reported for changes 

in the calculation of the net pension liability that result from: a) differences between expected and 
actual experience; b) changes of assumptions; c) net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments; d) changes in proportion and difference between 
Municipality’s contributions and proportionate share of contributions; and e) Municipality’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date. 

 
K. Long-term obligations- The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial statements include to 

general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long-term liabilities, such as vacation, sick 
leave, litigation, long-term liabilities to other governmental entities. 

 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances cost, during the 
current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources, while bond 
issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as 
expenditures. 

 
L. Compensated absences- The Municipality's employees accumulate vacation, sick leave and 

compensatory time based on continuous service.  Compensated absences are recorded as a liability if 
(1) are earned on the basis of services already performed by employees, (2) it is probable that will be 
paid (in the form of paid time off, cash payments at termination or retirement, or some other means) and 
(3) are not contingent on a specific event (such as illness).The compensated absences are accumulated 
on the basis of 2½ days per month of vacation and 1½ days per month of sick pay and compensatory 
time up to a maximum of 60 days of vacations and 90 days of sick leave.   

 
Upon separation from employment the accumulated vacations are liquidated up to the maximum number 
of days. Accumulated sick leave, which is accrued based on all vesting amounts for which payment is 
probable, is liquidated to employees with 10 years or more service up to the maximum number of days. 

 
The accrual of compensated absences includes estimated payments that are related to payroll. The 
entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For 
governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the 
amount that is normally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources. The non-
current portion of the liability is not reported. 

 
Pursuant to Law No. 152 of August 20, 1996 effective July 1, 1997, the Municipality is required to pay 
any excess of vacations and sick leave accumulated over 90 days as of December 31 of each year. 
Payments should be made on or before March 31 of the following year.  
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
M. Claims and judgments - The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments, which is due on 

demand, such as from adjudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the general fund when the liability is 
incurred. 

 

N. Net Position - In the government-wide statements, assets plus deferred outflows of resources less 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources equal net position, and should be displayed in three 
components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted, as follows: 
 

Net investment in 
capital assets:  

Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by 
the outstanding balances of bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of 
those assets or related debt also should be included in this component of 
net position. The portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources 
attributable to the unspent debt proceeds is not included in the calculation 
of net investment in capital assets. Instead, the portion of the debt or 
deferred inflows of resources is included in the same net position 
component (restricted or unrestricted) as the unspent amount. 

  
Restricted net 
position: 

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets 
(subject to restrictions beyond the Municipality’s control) reduced by 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 
Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a 
resource flow that also results in the recognition of a liability or if the 
liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported. Restrictions 
are externally imposed (by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and 
regulations of other governments) or imposed by the law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

  
Unrestricted net 
position: 

Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows 
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not 
included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the 
restricted component of net position. Unrestricted net position is often 
designated to indicate that management does not consider them to be 
available for general operations. These types of constraints are internal 
and management can remove or modify them.  

 
O. Net position flow assumption - Sometimes, the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose 

from both restricted (restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate 
the amounts to report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide 
financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are 
considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been 
depleted before unrestricted – net position is applied 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

P. Fund balances- 
 
The GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (“GASB 
No. 54”) establishes accounting and reporting standards for all governments that report governmental 
funds. It also establishes criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically defined classifications and 
clarifies definitions for governmental fund types. These classifications comprise a hierarchy based 
primarily on the extent to which the Municipality is bound to observe constraints upon the use of the 
resources reported. The classifications are as follows: 

 
 
 

  

Nonspendable: Amounts that cannot be spent because are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  

  

Restricted: Amounts constrained by external parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and 
regulations of other governments), imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
by enabling legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the Municipality to assess, levy, 
charge or otherwise mandate payment or resources (from external resource providers) 
and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for 
the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. Legally enforceability means that the 
Municipality can be compelled by an external party such as citizens, public interest 
groups, or the judiciary to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the 
purposes specified by the legislation. 

  

Committed: Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed through formal action (ordinance or resolution) by consent of the 
government’s highest level of decision-making authority, which in the case of the 
Municipality is the Mayor and the Municipal Legislature. Those committed amounts 
cannot be used for any other purposes unless the Mayor and the Municipal Legislature 
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or 
resolution) it employed to commit those amounts. Formal action to commits fund 
balance to a specific purpose should occur prior to the end of the fiscal year, but the 
amount, if any, which will be subject to the constraint, may be determined in the 
subsequent period.  

  

Assigned: Amounts that are constrained by the Municipality’s intent to be used for specific 
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. In distinction to committed 
balances, the authority for making an assignment is not required to be the 
government’s highest level of decision-making authority, (both the Mayor and the 
Municipal Legislature). It is the Municipality’s policy that intent can be expressed by the 
Mayor, the Finance Director (the official to which the Mayor has also delegated the 
authority to assign amounts) or by any other official or body to which the Mayor 
delegates. Furthermore, the nature of the actions necessary to remove or modify an 
assignment is not as prescriptive as it is with committed fund balances. With the 
exception of the general fund, this is the residual fund balance of the classification of all 
governmental funds with positive fund balances. Action taken to assign fund balance 
may be made after year-end. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

P. Fund balances (continued) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose (restricted or 
committed fund balance in the general fund) only if: 1) such resources meet the other criteria for those 
classifications, as described above and 2) the circumstances or conditions that signal the need for 
stabilization are identified in sufficient detail and are not expected to occur routinely. However, the 
Municipality has not entered into any stabilization-like arrangements, nor has set aside material financial 
resources for emergencies and has not established formal minimum fund balances amounts as of for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. 
 

Q. Fund balance flow assumptions - Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose 
from both restricted and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund 
balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned 
fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the 
order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider 
restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund 
balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, 
committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is 
applied last. 
 
 

R. Accounting for pension costs 
 
The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASBS No. 68, Accounting and Reporting for Pensions – an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASBS No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made 
Subsequent to the Measurement Date, which amended GASBS No.68. 
 
The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a multi-employer cost-
sharing plan. Accordingly, the net pension liability, pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources recognized in the accompanying basic financial statements are equal to the Municipality’s 
proportionate shares of the collective net pension liability, pension expense and collective deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources reported for the pension plans’ trust by the plan’s administrator as of the 
measurement date. In addition, if the Municipality’s annual contributions are less than the statutorily 
required amounts, a liability is recorded for any unpaid balances. 

Unassigned: Is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all spendable 
amounts not restricted, committed or assigned. The general fund is the only fund 
that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. For all other 
governmental funds the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit 
balance resulting for the overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had 
been restricted, committed or assigned. 
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
     R.    Accounting for pension costs (continued) 

 
For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASBS Nos. 68 and 71, the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto 
Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS), a multi-employer hybrid defined contribution plan in which the 
employees of the Municipality participate. The Municipality is considered a participant, and not a sponsor, 
of this retirement system since the majority of the participants in the aforementioned pension trust fund 
are employees of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the basic financial statements of such 
retirement system are part of the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity. 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to 
pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the ESR plan and 
additions to/reductions from the ESR plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by the ESR. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
S. Interfund and intra-entity transactions 

 
The Municipality has the following types of transactions among funds: 

 

a. Operating Transfers- Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as “Operating 
transfer-in” by the recipient fund and as “Operating transfers-out” by the disbursing fund. 
 

b. Intra-Entity Transactions- Transfers between the funds of the primary government are reported 
as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as amounts due to and due from 
other funds.  

 

T. Risk financing 
  

The Municipality carries commercial insurance that consists of professional, public responsibility, property 
and theft, auto and fidelity bond coverage. Under Law Num. 63 of June 21, 2010, the Legislature of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico authorized the municipalities to procure and manage, at their own 
discretion, all insurance policies, including those related to the health plans provided to the municipal 
employees. The Municipality’s commercial insurance and health plan coverages are procured and 
negotiated through a single insurance broker. The broker obtains quotes from the different insurance 
companies and the Municipality’s management makes the selection based on coverage and price. The 
total cost of the annual premiums is financed through a payment plan made with an insurance financing 
company, and the monthly payments are deducted from the advances of property tax and amounts of the 
municipal equalization fund sent to the Municipality by the CRIM.      
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

T.  Risk financing (continued) 
 

The Municipality obtains workers’ compensation insurance through the State Insurance Fund 
Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This insurance covers 
workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or employment-related accidents, or 
because of illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. Cost of insurance allocated to the 
Municipality and deducted from the gross property tax collections by the Municipal Revenue Collection 
Center (CRIM) for the year ended June 30, 2015 amounted to $284,966. 

 
The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and drivers’ 
insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs administered by the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico’s Department of Labor and Human Resources (DOL). These insurance 
programs cover workers against unemployment and provide supplementary insurance coverage for 
temporary disability, or death because work or employment-related accidents or non-occupational 
disability and drivers’ insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis. 
 
Under Act No. 63 of June 21, 2010, the Legislative Assembly of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, 
authorized the municipalities to procure and manage at their own discretion all insurance policies, 
including those related to health plans been provided to the municipal employees. The Municipality 
also obtains medical insurance coverage from one health insurance company for its employees.  

 

Different health coverage and premium options are negotiated each year by the Municipality. 
Premiums are paid on a monthly basis directly to the insurance company. 
 

U. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with USGAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates. 

 

V. Future adoption of accounting pronouncements  
 

The GASB has issued the following statements, which the Municipality has not yet adopted: 
 

1. GASB Statement No. 72 “Fair Value Measurement and Application.” The provisions of this 
Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015 (fiscal year ended June 30, 
2016). 
 

2. GASB Statement No. 73 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related 
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.” The provisions of this Statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2016), except those 
provisions that address employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for  
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1.   ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

V. Future adoption of accounting pronouncements  (continued) 
 

pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68, which are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2016 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2017). 
 

3. GASB Statement No. 74 “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other 
Than Pensions.” The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2016 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2017). 

 
4. GASB Statement No. 75 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 

Benefits Other Than Pensions.” The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2017 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2018). 

 
5. GASB Statement No. 76 “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for 

State and Local Governments.” The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2015 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2016). 

 
6. GASB Statement No. 77 “Tax Abatement Disclosures.” The provisions of this Statement are 

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2017). 
 
The impact of these statements on the Municipality’s financial statements, if any, has not yet been 
determined. 
 
W. Subsequent events 

 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 7, 2016, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued, for events requiring recording or disclosure in the financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
 
 

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in Puerto Rico and Government 
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB).  Proceeds from bonds and funds related to certain grant awards 
are required by law to be held with GDB. 

 

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 40), Deposit and Investment 
Risk Disclosure, an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 3. This statement requires that state and local 
governments disclose essential risk information about deposits and investments. The disclosure 
requirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2) interest rate risk, (3) custodial credit risk, (4) foreign 
exchange exposure.  
 
Credit risk – This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
In compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the Municipality has adopted, as it’s  
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

custodial and credit risk policy, the Statement of Investment Guidelines for the Government of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly the Municipality invests only in obligations of the Commonwealth 
obligations of the United States of America, certificates of deposits, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, 
or in pools of obligations of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, which are managed by GDB. According to the 
aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality does not invest in marketable securities or any types 
of investments for which credit risk exposure may be significant. Therefore, the Municipality’s management 
has concluded that the risk related to any possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the 
Municipality’s deposits is considered low at June 30, 2015. 

 

Interest rate risk – This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment.  The Municipality manages its exposure to declines in fair values by: (1) not 
including debt investments in its investment portfolio at June 30, 2015, (2) limiting the weighted average 
maturity of its investments to three months or less, and (3) keeping most of its bank deposits in interest- 
bearing accounts generating interests at prevailing market rates.  At June 30, 2015, the Municipality’s 
investments in certificates of deposits are recorded at cost, which approximates their fair value.  Therefore, 
the Municipality’s management has concluded that at June 30, 2015, the interest rate risk associated with the 
Municipality’s cash and cash equivalents is considered low. 

 

Custodial credit risk – In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Municipality’s deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the Statement of Investment Guidelines for the 
Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the balances deposited in commercial banks by the 
Municipality are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) generally up to a maximum of 
$250,000 per depositor.  
 

In addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully securities pledged as 
collateral are held, in the Municipality’s name, by the agents of the Commonwealth’s Secretary of Treasury. 
Deposits with GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by GDB on 
deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality through June 30, 2015.  Therefore, the 
Municipality’s management has concluded that at June 30, 2015 the custodial credit risk associated with the 
Municipality’s cash and cash equivalents is considered low. 
 

Foreign exchange risk – The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the value of an 
investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality is prevented 
from investing in foreign securities or any other types of investments in which foreign exchange risk exposure 
may be significant. Accordingly, management has concluded that the foreign exchange risk related to the 
Municipality’s deposits is considered low at June 30, 2015. 
 

Under Commonwealth of Puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks must be fully 
collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository insurance. All securities pledged as 
collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of Puerto Rico. In addition, the Municipality maintains 
deposits with the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). 

 
Deposits – At year-end, the Municipality’s bank balance of deposits in commercial banks amounting to 
$16,427,109 was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the Secretary of Treasury 
of Puerto Rico in the Municipality’s name. Deposits in governmental banks (all of which are uninsured and 
uncollateralized), amount to $21,715,904 as of June 30, 2015. 
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3. RECEIVABLES 
 

A. Municipal License Tax- The Municipality imposes a municipal license tax on all businesses that operate 
within the Municipality, which are not totally or partially exempt from the tax pursuant to the Industrial 
Incentives Acts of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.  This is a self-assessed tax based on the business 
volume in gross sales as shown in the tax return that is due on April 24 of each year. 

 

Entities with sales volume of $1,000,000 or more must include audited financial statements together with 
the tax return.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the tax rates were as follows: 

 

1. Financial business- 1.50% of gross revenues 
 

2. Other organizations- 0.50% of gross revenues 
 

This tax is due in two equal installments on July 1 and January 1 of each fiscal year.  A discount of 5% is 
allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15. 

 

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year are recorded as 
unearned revenues.  
 

The unearned revenues of $3,890,384 in the general fund relates to municipal license tax collected in 
fiscal year 2014-15 that will be earned in fiscal year 2015-16. 
 

4. DUE FROM (TO) GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 
 

A. Amounts due from governmental entities as of June 30, 2015 are as follows: 
 

  Commonwealth  Federal 
  Government  Government 

     
Major fund – General fund:     

PR Department of Treasury-Christmas bonus reimbursement  $        92,458  $               - 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) – property taxes final liquidation   128,473   

     

Major fund – Special revenue fund-Head Start program:     
Early Head Start program     25,483 

     
Major fund – Capital project fund:     

PR Department of Transportation-Cooperative agreement  308,969   
PR Government Development Bank  267,225   
PR Treasury Department-Joint Resolution No.123  91,607   

     
Major fund – Debt service fund:     

Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) – property taxes   683,720   
     

Other Governmental Funds:     
PR Department of Labor-Law 52  180,000   
PR Treasury Department-Joint Resolution No.412  118,839   
PR Treasury Department-Joint Resolution No.4272  7,114   
PR Treasury Department-Legislative grants  17,885   
Community Services Block Grant    7,190 
Hazard Mitigation Grant    28,000 

  $    1,896,290  $     60,673 
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4. DUE FROM (TO) GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES (Continued) 
 

B. Amounts due to other governmental entities as of June 30, 2015 are as follows: 
 

 

Governmental Entity Amount 
  

Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority $      46,478 
  

Puerto Rico Department of Labor 365 
  

Retirement System Administration 152,406 
  

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Employee Association 23,495 
  

General Services Administration 2,399 
  

Total $    225,143 

 
 

 
 

5. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in 
amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as “due 
to and from other funds” (i.e., current portion of interfund loans).  

 

Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2015, and interfund transfers during the fiscal year ended at 
June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows: 

 

a. Due from/to other fund and Advance to/from: 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Purpose Amount 
    
 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Fund-
Head Start program 

Payroll and related 
accruals paid and not 
reimbursed 

 

$            14,780 

    

 
General Fund 

Capital Projects Fund-State 
& Local Funds 

Reimbursable 
expenditures 

3,694,797 

    

 
General Fund 

 
Other governmental funds 

Reimbursable 
expenditures 

 
998,768 

    
 
 

  



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

 

 44 

    
5. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Purpose Amount 
    
 
General Fund 

Other Governmental  
Funds-Federal Program 

 
Advances 

 
38,845 

    

 
General Fund 

 
Enterprise fund 

 
Reimbursable 
expenditures 

 
 

            12,601 
    

Total   $        4,759,791 
 

b. Transfer in/out to other fund 
 

Following is a summary of interfund transfers for the year: 
 

Transfer out Transfer in  Amount 
    

Debt Service Fund Capital Project Fund  $ 656,591 

    

General Fund Debt Service Fund  69,776 

  
 

 

Other governmental funds 
Special Revenue Fund – Heat Start 
Program 

 
72,628 

    

General Fund 
Special Revenue Fund – Heat Start 
Program 

 
53,385 

    

General Fund Other governmental funds  113,409 

    

Capital Project Fund General Fund  279,281 

    

General Fund Enterprise Fund  5,200 
    

Other governmental funds General Fund         29,338 
    

Total   $1,279,608 
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6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 

Accounts payable, and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2015 are summarized as follows: 
 

 
 
 

Description 

 
 
 

General Fund 

 
Special Revenue 

Fund 
Head Start Fund 

 
Capital Projects 
Fund – State &  
Local Grants 

 
Other 

Governmental 
Fund 

 
 
 

Total 
      
Accounts 
payable 

$  2,536,581 $         63,608 $    1,073,384 $          243,178 $ 3,916,751 

      
Accrued 
liabilities 

 
        366,689 

 
                    - 

  
                    - 

 
                        - 

 
          366,689 

      
Total $   2,903,270 $        63,608 $   1,073,384 $          243,178                   4,283,440 

 

 

7. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

As required by current standards, revenues and other governmental fund financial resources should be 
recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available. When an asset is 
recorded in governmental fund’s financial statements but the revenue is not available, the Municipality should 
report a deferred inflow of resources until such time as the revenue becomes available. A detail of these 
balances follows: 
 

  Commonwealth  Federal 
  Government  Government 

Major fund - General fund:     
P.R. Department of Treasury – Christmas bonus reimbursement  $         92,458  $                - 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) – property taxes 
final liquidation  

 128,473   

Major fund – Special revenue fund-Head Start program:     
Head Start Program    90,403 

Major fund – Capital project fund:     
PR Treasury Department-Joint Resolution No. 123  91,607   
PR Department of Transportation-Cooperative Agreement  308,969   
PR Government Development Bank  267,225   

Other governmental funds:     
PR Department of Labor-Law 52  180,000   
PR Treasury Department-Joint Resolution No. 412  118,839   
PR Treasury Department-Joint Resolution No. 4272  7,114   

  $    1,194,685  $     90,403 
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8. UNEARNED REVENUES 
 

The amounts reported as unearned revenues as of June 30, 2015 are detail as follows: 
 

  Amount 

Major fund – General fund:   
Municipal license taxes collected in the fiscal year 2014-2015 that correspond to the 2015-2016 
fiscal year budget 

  
$    3,890,384 

   
   

Special Revenue Fund – Head Start:  569,068 
   
Other Governmental Fund   
Special Program for the aging – Title III  251,031 
Federal Transit Administration Grants  66,034 
Department of Housing and Urban Development Grants  115,805 
Child and Adult Care Food Program  17,094 
Others             47,964 

   
Total  $   4,957,380 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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9. FUND BALANCE 
 

As of June 30 2015, fund balance (deficit) is comprised of the following: 
 

 
 
 
 
Fund Balance 
(Deficit) 

  
 
 
 

General 
Fund 

  
 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund-Head 
Start 

  
 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund-State & 
Local Grants 

  
 

 
 

Debt Service 
Fund 

  
 
 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

   
 

 
 

 
Total 

              
Nonspendable:              

Interfund loans 
receivable 

 $    38,845  $                -  $                -  $                -  $                   -   $  38,845 

              
Restricted for:              

Health and Welfare          884,557   884,557 

Public Safety          115,541   115,541 

Capital Projects      9,926,922    3,680,448   13,607,370 

Debt Service        7,123,074     7,123,074 

              

Unassigned  2,961,828           2,961,828 

              
Total Fund Balance 

(Deficit) 
 $ 3,000,673   $                   -  $ 9,926,922  $ 7,123,074  $   4,680,546   $ 24,731,215 
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10. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of acquisition by the 
Municipality and a cost of $100 or more, are primarily funded through the issuance of long-term bonds and 
loans.  A summary of capital assets and changes occurring in 2015, including those changes pursuant to the 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, follows.  Land and construction in progress are not subject to 
depreciation:  

 

  
 

 Balance 
     

 
Balance 

Governmental Activities:  July 1, 2014  Additions  Retirements  June 30, 2015 
         

Capital asset, not being depreciated:         

         

Land  $  65,563,165    $         54,473     $                -       $      65,617,638  
Construction in progress  35,837,888      5,231,985          (7,521,656)          33,548,217  
         

Total capital assets not being depreciated  101,401,053  

    
 5,286,458  (7,521,656)          99,165,855  

         

Capital assets, being depreciated:         
         

Buildings  11,114,245            300,025                        -             11,414,270  
Buildings improvements  18,351,403        5,946,043                        -             24,297,446 

Infrastructure  13,275,407        1,626,798                        -             14,902,205  
Infrastructure improvements  5,884,229            770,304                        -               6,654,533  
Equipment  5,098,147            434,165                    (109)            5,532,203  

Furnishing  482,087                3,734                        -                  485,821  
Work of Arts  595,425                       -                          -                  595,425  
Computers  582,995              37,170               (10,334)               609,831  

Vehicles  7,761,773            284,458             (315,011)            7,731,220  
         

Total capital assets being depreciated  63,145,711      9,402,697            (325,454)          72,222,954  

         

Less accumulated depreciation for:         
         

Buildings  (5,923,759)       (283,507)                       -              (6,207,266) 

Buildings improvements  (2,455,682)       (606,047)                       -              (3,061,729) 
Infrastructure  (4,239,424)       (295,849)                       -              (4,535,273) 

Infrastructure improvements  (2,277,428)       (430,187)                       -              (2,707,615) 

Equipment  (4,194,347)       (333,946)                    109            (4,528,184) 
Furnishing  (471,279)           (5,444)                       -                 (476,723) 

Computers  (523,658)         (36,747)               10,334               (550,071) 
Work of Arts  (181,175)         (58,742)                       -                 (239,917) 
Vehicles  (7,052,290)       (311,385)             315,011            (7,048,664) 
         

Total accumulated depreciation  (27,319,042)    (2,361,854)             325,454          (29,355,442) 
         

Total capital assets being depreciated 
net  35,826,669      7,040,843  -          42,867,512 
         

Governmental activities capital  
assets, net  137,227,722         12,327,301          (7,521,656)        142,033,367  
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10. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 
 

Governmental activities:  
  

Community Development  $      158,412  
Culture And Recreation  414,129 
Economic Development  96,613 
Education 3,560 
General Government  566,363 
Health And Welfare  8,773 
Public Safety  108,430 
Public Work      1,005,574 

  

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities $   2,361,854  
 

 

 Balance      Balance 
Business – type activities July 1, 2014  Additions  Retirements  June 30,2015 
        

Capital asset, not being depreciated:        

        

Land and construction in progress $   388,790  $                   -  $                      -  $   388,790 

        

Total capital assets not being depreciated 388,790  -  -  388,790 

        

Capital assets, being depreciated:        

        

Building 3,537,458    -  3,537,458 

Building improvements 45,400  -  -  45,400 

        

Total capital assets being depreciated 3,582,858  -  -  3,582,858 

        

Less accumulated depreciation for:        

        

Building and Building Improvements (1,594,701)  (89,571)  -  (1,684,272) 

        

Total accumulated depreciation (1,594,701)  (89,571)  -  (1,684,272) 

        

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,988,157  (89,571)  -  1,898,586 

        

Business- type Activities capital assets, net $2,376,947  (89,571)  $                    -  $2,287,376 

 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 
 

 Business –type Activities  
General government $ 89,571 

  

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities $ 89,571 
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Long-term liability activity-governmental funds, for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows: 

 
  Beginning  Borrowings or       
  Balance, as  Additions and  Payments or  Ending  Due Within 

Description  Restated  Adjustment  Deductions  Balance  One Year 

           
Bonds payable  $68,333,000  $   920,000  $ (2,871,000)  $ 66,382,000  $2,802,000 
Notes payable  7,132,000  -  (801,000)  6,331,000  616,000 
PR Aqueduct and Sewer 
Authority Payment plan  

 
-  352,036  -  352,036  162,478 

Property tax debt- Law-
42 

 
215,253  -  (6,479)  208,774  6,886 

Compensated absences  3,296,669  -  (371,595)  2,925,074  230,000 
Claims and judgments  377,975  20,000  (365,000)  32,975  32,975 
Christmas bonus  292,255  397,617  (292,255)  397,617  397,617 
Landfill obligation   1,658,783  78,600  -  1,737,383  - 

           
Total  $81,305,935   $ 1,768,253   $(4,707,329)  $78,366,859   $4,247,956 

 

Long term liability activity for the business- type activities, for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows: 
 

 
 
Description 

  
Beginning 
Balance 

 Borrowings or 
Additions and 

Adjustment 

  
Payments or 
Deductions 

  
Ending 
Balance 

  
Due Within 
One Year 

           
Bonds payable  $     174,000  $                    -  $                   -  $  174,000  $  174,000 

           
Total  $     174,000  $                    -  $                  -  $  174,000  $  174,000 

 

1. Legal debt margin- The Municipality is subject to a legal debt margin requirement, which is equal to 10% 
of the total assessment of property located within the Municipality plus balance of the ad valorem taxes in 
the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for 
debt service.  In addition, before any new bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should 
be sufficient to cover the projected debt service requirement. Long-term debt, except for the bonds and 
notes payable (excluding notes payable to the Land Authority), is paid with unrestricted funds. 
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2. Bonds payable- The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide funds for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2015 are as 
follows 

 
 
Description 

Balance at 
June 30, 2015 

  

 
1997 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$290,000 due in installments of $20,000 to $25,000 through July 1, 2016 

 
 

25,000 
 
1997 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$110,000 due in installments of $5,000 to $10,000 through July 1, 2016 

 
 

10,000 
 
2000 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$1,500,000 due in installments of $70,000 to 145,000 through July 1, 2021 

 
 

705,000 
 
2001 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$310,000 due in installments of $10,000 to $30,000 through July 1, 2026 

 
 

210,000 
 
2002 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$2,850,000 due in installments of $80,000 to $250,000 through July 1, 2027 

 
 

2,015,000 
 
2004 General obligation bond for operational expenses with an original amount of $550,000 
due in installments of $15,000 to $40,000 through July 1, 2029 

 
 

405,000 
 
2004 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$3,150,000 due in installments of $135,000 to $240,000 through July 1, 2024 

 
 

1,805,000 
 
2004 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$115,000 due in installments of $5,000 to $10,000 through July 1, 2024 

 
 

60,000 
 
2004 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$1,860,000 due in installments of $80,000 to $145,000 through July 1, 2024 

 
 

1,065,000 
 
2005 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$945,000 due in installments of $60,000 to $85,000 through July 1, 2020 

 
 

395,000 
 
2005 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$5,825,000 due in installments of $360,000 to $535,000 through July 1, 2020 

 
 

2,430,000 
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

 

Description 
Balance at 

June 30, 2015 
 
2006 Special obligation bond for property acquisition with an original amount of $532,000 
due in installments of $13,000 to $42,000 through July 1, 2030 

 
 

410,000 
 
2007 Special obligation bond for Infrastructure improvement with an original amount of 
$1,645,000 due in installments of $85,000 to $175,000 through July 1, 2022 

 
 

985,000 
 
2007 Special obligation bond for Infrastructure improvement with an original amount of 
$930,000 due in installments of $35,000 to $85,000 through July 1, 2029 

 
 

785,000 
 
2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$3,650,000 due in installments of $65,000 to $305,000 through July 1, 2033 

 
 

3,185,000 
 
2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$220,000 due in installments of $20,000 to $30,000 through July 1, 2018 

 
 

85,000 
 
2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$370,000 due in installments of $5,000 to $35,000 through July 1, 2033 

 
 

325,000 
 
2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$3,265,000 due in installments of $60,000 to $270,000 through July 1, 2033 

 
 

2,840,000 
 
2008 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$3,720,000 due in installments of $75,000 to $310,000 through July 1, 2032 

 
 

3,285,000 
 
2009 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$3,395,000 due in installments of $90,000 to $310,000 through July 1, 2029 

 
 

2,825,000 
 
2010 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$1,820,000 due in installments of $40,000 to $155,000 through July 1, 2032 

 
 

1,610,000 
 
2010 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$1,095,000 due in installments of $20,000 to $90,000 through July 1, 2035 

 
 

995,000 
 
2010 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$537,000 due in installments of $30,000 to $62,000 through July 1, 2022 

 
 

382,000 
 
2012 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$1,900,000 due in installments of $30,000 to $160,000 through July 1, 2036 

 
 

1,775,000 
 
2012 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of 
$3,305,000 due in installments of $60,000 to $290,000 through July 1, 2033 

 
 

3,020,000 
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

 
Description 

Balance at 
June 30, 2015 

  

 
2012 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of $805,000 
due in installments of $30,000 to $85,000 through July 1, 2025 

 
 

675,000 
 
2013 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of $2,315,000 
due in installments of $55,000 to $215,000 through July 1, 2031 

 
 

2,145,000 
 
2013 General obligation bond for operational expenditures with an original amount of $10,240,000 
due in installments of $150,000 to $855,000 through July 1, 2036 

 
 

9,755,000 
 
2012 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of $2,185,000 
due in installments of $45,000 to $200,000 through July 1, 2032 

 
 

2,085,000 

 
2013 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of $1,145,000 
due in installments of $40,000 to $120,000 through July 1, 2027 

 
 

1,060,000 
 
2013 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of $1,255,000 
due in installments of $30,000 to $115,000 through July 1, 2032 

 
 

1,195,000 
 
2013 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of $985,000 
due in installments of $15,000 to $85,000 through July 1, 2037 

 
 

955,000 
 
2014 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of $6,940,000 
due in installments of $195,000 to $560,000 through July 1, 2038 

 
 

6,745,000 
 
2014 General obligation bond for two properties acquisitions for municipality facility development with 
an original amount of $100,000 due in installments of $5,000 to $10,000 through July 1,2028 

 
 

95,000 
 
2014 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvement with an original amount of $3,230,000 
due in installments of $70,000 to $295,000 through July 1, 2033 

 
 

3,160,000 
 
2014 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvement with an original amount of $5,565,000 
due in installments of $125,000 to $510,000 through July 1, 2033 

 
 

5,440,000 
 
2014 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvement with an original amount of $525,000 
due in installments of $5,000 to $45,000 through July 1, 2038 

 
 

         520,000 
 
2014-General obligation bond for infrastructure improvement with an original amount of $920,000 
due in installments of $100,000 to $30,000 through July 1,2030 

 
 

          920,000 
 
Total general obligation bonds in Governmental Activities 

 
$    66,382,000  

 
Add: Special Obligation Bond in Business Type Activities 

 

 
2012 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount of $754,000 
due in installments of $130,000 to $174,000 through July 1, 2016 

 
 

          174,000 
 
Total general obligation bonds in Governmental Activities and Business Type Activities 

 
 $   66,556,000 
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

These bonds, except the 1997 Series bonds for $110,000 and $290,000, and the 2006 Series bonds 
amounting to $532,000, are payable from the special ad valorem property tax of 2.00% which is restricted for 
debt service and retained by the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes The 2008 
Series bond amounting to $3,720,000, the 2009 bond for $930,000, the 2010 Series bond for $537,000, and 
the 2012 Series bond amounting $805,000 are payable with the revenues generated from the collection of 
the .2% of the municipal sales and use taxes Redemption Fund.  
 

The 2012 Series bonds amounting to $754,000 is payable by the self-generated revenues from the “Pabellón 
Rafael Hernández” charges for services and is accounted for in the business type activity. 

 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

 

 
Year Ending 

  

June 30, Principal Interest 
   

2016     $     2,931,000     $      3,234,321  
2017            2,923,000             3,723,112  
2018            3,139,000             3,837,776  
2019            3,300,000             3,670,013  
2020            3,522,000             3,506,675  

2021-2025          16,129,000           14,945,846  
2026-2030          17,792,000             9,072,480  
2031-2035          14,615,000             2,967,570  
2036-2040            2,205,000                184,688  

Total Bonds Payable      $   66,556,000     $    45,142,481  

 

3. Notes Payable- The proceeds of the issuance of notes payables were used principally to pay debt 
incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. The notes are payable as follows: 

 

 
Type of notes 

Maturity 
Date 

Original  
Amount 

Range of 
Interest rates 

Balance at 
June 30, 2015 

     
Section 108 Series 2008 A 7-1-2028 5,500,000 5.11% $  3,970,000 
2009 Series 7-1-2033 1,141,000 1.718% to 6.50% 1,021,000 
2010 Series 7-1-2017 345,000 4.73% 115,000 
2010 Series 7-1-2017 65,000 5% to 7% 20,000 
2012 Series 7-1-2018 480,000 6% to 7.50% 240,000 
2013 Series 7-1-2019 540,000 6% to 7.5% 415,000 
2014 Series 7-1-2020 620,000 6% to 7.5% 550,000 

     
Total notes payable    $   6,331,000 

 

 

 



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

 

55 

11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

This notes, except the 2009 and 2012 Series are payable from the special ad valorem property tax of 2.00% 
which is restricted for debt service and retained by the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico for 
such purposes. The Series 2009, amounting $1,141,000, and the 2012 Series amounting to $480,000 are 
payable with the revenues generated from the collection of the .2% of the Municipal Sales and Use Taxes 
Redemption Fund. 

 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows: 
 

Year Ending    
June 30, Principal  Interest 
    

2016       $    616,000    $     285,911 
2017           641,000          293,571 
2018           591,000          270,497 
2019           521,000          238,889 
2020           541,000          207,819 
2021-2025        1,855,000          695,382 
2026-2030        1,215,000          238,938 
2031-2035           351,000            48,652 

Total $  6,331,000  $   2,279,659 
 

4. Compensated absences- The government-wide statement of Net Position includes $1,772,163 of 
accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately $1,152,911 of accrued vacation benefits, representing the 
Municipality’s commitment to fund such costs from future operations. 

 

5. Claims and Judgments – This amount represents the balance related to legal claims at June 30, 2015, 
as described in Note 17. 

 

6. Landfill obligation- State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place a final cover 
on its landfill site when closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site 
for thirty years after closure.  In accordance with Statement No. 18 of the GASB, “Accounting for Municipal 
Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post Closure Care Costs”, the Municipality has performed a study of the 
activities that need to be implemented at the Municipality’s landfill to comply with applicable state and 
federal regulations. During June 30, 2004, the Municipality entered in an agreement with a contractor to 
complete the final cover of the landfill for a total cost of $873,569 and additional inspection, monitoring, 
and supervision costs amounting to $90,079 for a total cost of $963,648. Based on this, the Municipality 
has recognized $20,383 as the Municipality’s estimated current cost for landfill closure as of June 30, 
2015. The preliminary annual estimate of post closure costs has been adjusted to approximately 
$1,717,000 for a period of approximately 20 years.  Actual costs may be different due to inflation, changes 
in technology, or changes in laws and regulations.  As of June 30, 2015, the Municipality’s landfill facilities 
have been closed. The balance of closure and post-closure costs of $20,383 and $1,717,000 respectively, 
are reported in the government-wide statement of net position. 

 

7. Note payable to P.R. Aqueduct and Sewer Authority – This amount represents the balance of a debt 
repayment agreement with the Authority at June 30, 2015. 

 

8. Christmas Bonus – represents the accrued portion corresponding to the fiscal year 2015 of the 
Christmas bonus to be paid in December 2015. The outstanding amount is $397,617. 

 

9. Notes payable to CRIM - Law No. 42 - This amount represents the balance owed to the Municipal 
Revenue Collection Center (“CRIM”) at June 30, 2015 as described in Note 12. 
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12. PROPERTY TAXES 
 

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by May 15 of each 
year with the CRIM, a governmental entity created by the government of Puerto Rico as part of the Municipal 
Governmental Autonomous Law of August 1991.  Real property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of 
real estate and on each building. 
 

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for personal property 
and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax.  The tax on personal property must be paid in full 
together with the return by May 15.  The tax on real property may be paid in two installments by July 1 and 
January 1.  The CRIM is responsible for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on 
behalf of all the municipalities of Puerto Rico.  Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs the 
Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collect for the ensuing fiscal year.  
Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on the initial estimated collections, 
as modified by the quarterly revisions of estimates required law.  The CRIM is required by law to prepare a 
liquidation statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to 
the Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This preliminary liquidation has to be 
completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-end, and a final liquidation made 
not later than six months after year-end, subject to the verification by its Independent Auditors. If the CRIM 
remits to the Municipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable 
from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually collected by the 
CRIM, a payable to the CRIM is recorded at June 30. At the date of this report, the Final Liquidation has not 
been issued by the CRIM. 
 
On January 26, 2000, Public Law No. 42 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to obtain a loan up to 
$200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financing of the debt that the 
Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of property tax advances 
versus actual collections through fiscal year ended June 30, 2000. The amounts that the Municipalities will 
collect from additional property taxes resulting from increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico to the Municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy 
was the result of the Public Law No. 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. On October 11, 2001, Public Law No. 
146 was enacted to amend Public Law No. 42, to extend the loan amortization period up to 30 years.  
 

Also, on October 11, 2002, Public Law No. 172 was enacted, to provide as an option for the Municipalities to 
include the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of 
property tax advances versus actual collections for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 with the loan 
authorized through Public Law No. 42 enacted on January 26, 2000. 
 

On June 26, 1997, Public Law No. 21 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to sell property tax receivables 
related to taxpayers who owned property taxes from 1974 to 1996. The property tax receivables were 
purchased by Public Financing Corporation, a subsidiary of the Government Development Bank (GDB), with 
proceeds of a bonds issuance. This Law imposes to the CRIM the obligation to replace any uncollectible 
property tax receivable with any valid property tax receivables or equivalent in money.  
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12. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED) 
 
A high percentage of receivables were determined to be uncollectible receivables, and therefore, on October 
11, 2001, Public Law No. 146 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to obtain a loan to pay in advance the 
bonds issued by the Public Financing Corporation (a GDB subsidiary), and any costs related to the 
transaction. Also, a term not to exceeding 30 years was authorized to the financing of the debt that the 
Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from the sale of property tax receivables to the Public 
Financing Corporation (a GDB Subsidiary). 
 

The government wide statement of net position includes an outstanding debt balance of $208,774 related to 
Law No. 42. 
 
Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property taxes on the 
first $15,000 of the assessed value.  For such exempted amounts, the Puerto Rico Treasury Department 
assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for property assessed at less than $3,500 for 
which no payment is made.  As part of the Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be paid 
by the Puerto Rico Treasury department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January 1, 1992.  
 
In addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of up to $50,000 of the 
assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than $150,000. 
 
The annual tax rate is 9.03% for real property and 7.03% for personal property of which 1.03% of both tax 
rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the remaining .20 
% is paid by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as a subsidy. The remaining percentage is distributed as 
follows: (a) 6% and 4%, respectively, represents the Municipality’s basic property tax rate which is 
appropriated for basics and accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an 
equalization fund together with a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico electronic lottery and a 
subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a distribution is made to all municipalities; 
(b) 2.00% and 2.00%, respectively, represents the ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and accounted for 
in the debt service fund. 
 

13. SALES AND USE TAX 
 

On July 4, 2006, the Commonwealth Legislature approved Act No. 117 (“Act 117”) which amends the Puerto 
Rico Internal Revenue Code of 1994 to provide, among other things, for a sale and use tax of 5.5% to be 
imposed by the Commonwealth Government. Act 117 also authorizes each municipal government to impose a 
municipal sale and use tax of 1.5%. This municipal sales and use tax has in general the same tax base and 
limitations (except for unprocessed foods) as those provided by the Commonwealth’s sales and use tax.  
 
On July 29, 2007, the Commonwealth Legislature approved Act No. 80 (Act 80), which amends Act No. 117 of 
July 4, 2006 to impose to all the Municipalities of Puerto Rico a uniform municipal sales and use tax of 1.5%. 
Effective August 1, 2007, 1% of the 1.5% is collected by the Municipalities and the remaining .5% of the 1.5% 
is collected by the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury (PRDT).  
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13. SALES AND USE TAX (CONTINUED) 
 

The amount collected by the PRDT, (.5% of the 1.5%) is deposited in accounts or special funds in the 
Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB), subject to restrictions imposed and distributed as 
follows: 
 

 .2% of the .5% will be deposited in a Municipal Development Fund to be distributed among all the 
municipalities in accordance with a formula created by the Act, 

 .2% of the .5% will be deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund to finance loans to Municipalities and,  

 .1% of the .5% will be deposited in a Municipal Improvement Fund to finance capital improvement 
projects; these funds will be distributed based on legislation from the Commonwealth’s Legislature 

 
Effective January 1, 2011, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico adopted a new Internal Revenue Code (2011 
PR Code). Subtitle D (Sections 4010 to 4070) of the 2011 PR Code incorporates the dispositions applicable to 
the sales and use tax. As stated by Section 4050, the Municipalities may use the sales and use tax proceeds 
to finance solid waste, recycling, capital projects, health and public safety programs as well as any other 
activity that promotes sound public administration. 
 
On June 30, 2013, the Commonwealth approved Act No. 40 which, among other things, reduces the municipal 
sales and use tax from 1.5% to 1% and increases the Commonwealth’s sales and use tax from 5.5% to 6% 
effective December 1, 2013. This Act was subsequently amended to change this effective date from 
December 1, 2013 to February 1, 2014. 
 
In order to address the fiscal and credit crisis of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the GDB liquidity and the 
difficult fiscal situation of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, on January 24, 2014, the Commonwealth approved 
Act No. 18 and 19. Those Acts provide for the restructuring and creation of financing structures from sales and 
use tax sources to guarantee and pay municipal long-term debt issuances.  
 
Act No. 18 creates a special fund called the Municipal Administration Fund (FAM), under the custody of the 
Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB), which permits the municipalities to guarantee and pay 
long term debt and provide funds for its general operations. In addition, this Act improves the financing 
capacity of the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation (COFINA), a Commonwealth fund administered 
by GDB and the P.R. Secretary of Treasury. The Act also includes special provisions for municipalities that do 
not want to be covered by the Act.  
 
After July 1, 2014, the 6% corresponding to the Commonwealth’s sales and use tax will be deposited in 
COFINA. From these funds, the Commonwealth will deposit .5% in the FAM. Distribution to the municipalities 
will depend on whether the municipalities signed an agreement to be covered or not covered by the Act’s 
provisions. The Municipality of Dorado signed the agreement to be covered. 
 
For municipalities covered by the agreement, the .5% will be distributed as follows: 
 

 .2% will be deposited in the Municipal Development Fund to be distributed to the municipalities, 
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13. SALES AND USE TAXES (CONTINUED) 
 

 .2% will be deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund to then be deposited in the municipalities 
general fund (the municipalities have the option to maintain funds in the Municipal Redemption Fund or 
to transfer funds from the Municipal Development Fund to increase its debt margin and issue loans to 
be obtained from financial institutions) 
 

 .1% will be deposited in a Municipal Improvement Fund to finance capital improvement projects; these 
funds will be distributed based on legislation from the Commonwealth’s Legislature. 

 
For municipalities not covered by the agreement the .5% will be distributed as follows: 
 

 .2% will be deposited in the Municipal Development Fund. Section 4 of the Act requires amounts 
deposited in the Municipal Development Fund of municipalities not covered by the Act to be 
redistributed to the municipalities covered by the Act, 
 

 .2% will be deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund to guarantee and repay long-term debt through 
any financial institution (each semester the municipalities may transfer to their general fund the funds in 
excess of debt service requirements), 

 

 .1% will be deposited in a Municipal Improvement Fund to finance capital improvement projects; these 
funds will be distributed based on legislation from the Commonwealth’s Legislature. 
 

Act No. 19 creates the Municipal Finance Corporation (COFIM), a public corporation and a component unit of 
the Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB) which may issue, pay or refinance long-term 
debt of municipalities. Principal and interest of these bonds and loans will be guaranteed with the municipal 
sales and use tax of 1%.  The Act also includes special provisions for municipalities that do not want to be 
covered by the Act.  
 
After July 1, 2014, the 1% corresponding to the municipalities’ sales and use tax will be deposited in COFIM. 
From these funds COFIM will deposit to the COFIM’s sinking fund the greater of: .3% of the 1% municipal 
sales and use tax or an Annual Rental Fee (RFA). The RFA for fiscal year 2014-2015 will be $65,541,281 
and thereafter will be 1.5% of the RFA of the preceding fiscal period. The excess of the required deposit to 
the COFIM’s sinking fund (.7% of the 1% of the municipal sales and use tax) will be transferred to the general 
fund of municipalities covered by the agreement or to the Municipal Redemption Fund as decided by the 
municipality. Before the transfer of the .7% to the municipalities covered by the Act, COFIM will transfer the 
1% municipal sales and use tax to the municipalities not covered by the Act. These municipalities cannot 
obtain loans guaranteed by COFIM’s sinking fund.  

 
If at any moment the required deposits to the COFIM’s sinking fund were not sufficient to pay the principal 
and interest of any outstanding obligation, the deficiency will be covered by appropriations of the 
Commonwealth’s general fund budget. 
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13. SALES AND USE TAXES (CONTINUED) 
 

Individuals, organizations and entities subject to the collection of the municipal sales and use tax must file a 
tax return to COFIM. The tax is due on or before the 20th day of each month based on the tax collected in the 
preceding month. COFIM has provided retailers three alternatives for the filling of the monthly return: 1) 
electronic filling through COFIM’s internet portal; 2) in the bank branches of the financial institution 
designated by COFIM to be its intermediary, the Popular Bank of Puerto Rico; and 3) in the collections offices 
of the municipalities that have been certified as collection agents of COFIM 

 
COFIM established a system of monthly advances for the transfers of the .2% destined for the Municipal 
Development Fund (FDM), the .2% related to the Municipal Redemption Fund (FRM) and the 1% of municipal 
sales and use tax.  Each month, the GDB will make the FDM, FRM and 1% sales and use tax transfers 
based on the amounts collected that same month in the preceding fiscal year (2013-2014). At the end of the 
year, a settlement will be made comparing the actual collections of the FDM, FRM and the 1% sales and use 
tax with the monthly advances made to each municipality. If actual collections exceed the total advances 
received, an account receivable from GDB will be recognized; if actual collections are less than the total 
advances, a payable to the GDB will be recognized and amortized through withholdings from future 
advances.  
 
For the FDM and FRM transfers, the advance system became effective on July 1, 2014; for the 1% municipal 
sales and use tax, the effective date varied depending on the implementation date of COFIM’s collection 
process in the corresponding municipality. For the Municipality of Dorado, the implementation date was 
February 1, 2015.  The GDB has not yet issued a final settlement for the advances made in the 2014-15 
fiscal year. 

 
14. PENSION PLAN  
 

General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
As of June 30, 2015, regular employees of the Municipality contribute to a cost-sharing multiple employer 
hybrid defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plan administered by the Employee’s Retirement 
System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS). ERS covers all regular full-time 
public employees working for the central government, the municipalities of Puerto Rico and certain public 
corporations not having their own retirement systems. The system provides retirement pensions, death, and 
disability benefits. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement and number of years of credited 
service. Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation. The pension plan operates under Act No. 447 of 
May 15, 1951, as amended, Act No. 305 of September 24, 1999 (System 2000 Reform) and Act No. 3 of April 
4, 2013.  

 
Under Act 447, retirement benefits were determined by the application of stipulated benefit ratios to the 
member’s average compensation. Average compensation was computed based on the highest 36 months of 
compensation recognized by ERS. The annuity, for which a plan member was eligible, was limited to a 
minimum of $200 per month and a maximum of 75% of the average compensation. For active participants of  
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14. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
the contributory defined benefit programs under Act No. 447, all retirement benefits accrued through June 30, 
established by Act No. 3. Participants will receive a pension at retirement age equivalent to what they had 
accrued under Act 447 up to June 30, 2013, and a supplemental annuity corresponding to contributions made 
after July 1, 2013.  
 
Participants under the defined contribution plan established by Reform System 2000 will receive a lifetime 
annuity calculated at retirement based on a factor that will incorporate the individual’s life expectancy and a 
rate of return. New participants under the hybrid plan established by Act No. 3 will receive a lifetime annuity 
based on the accumulated balance of their individual accounts (employees’ contributions plus a return on 
investment). The minimum monthly pension for current retirees is $500. 
 
Disability benefits previously provided by Act No. 447 and Reform System 2000 were eliminated by Act No. 3 
and substituted for a mandatory disability insurance policy. Beginning July 1, 2013, each employee must 
contribute to this insurance plan .25% of his or her monthly salary, up to a monthly maximum of $5,000. 
Therefore, the maximum monthly employee contribution will be $12.50 ($5,000 x .25%). 
 
Beginning July 1, 2013, all employers must contribute 12.275% of employee contribution with an additional 
1% annually up to June 30, 2016; after July 1, 2016, an additional 1.25% annually for each of the five years 
thereafter, reaching an aggregate contribution rate of 20.525% effective July 1, 2020. For the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2015, the employer contribution rate was 13.275% and the total required annual contribution 
amounted to $872,506.  
 
As required by Act 32 of June 25, 2015, the Additional Uniform Contribution (AUC) was established for the 
purpose of solving the cash flow deficit of the System. For each fiscal year, beginning on July 1, 2013, the 
ERS will: 1) determine the portion of the AUC attributable to each participating employer based on the 
percentage each employer’s contributions represent of the total employer contributions established for that 
fiscal year; and 2) send to the director of the P.R. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) and to each 
public corporation and municipality whose employees are covered by this Act, a certification of the AUC owed 
by each employer. The Municipality’s AUC for the fiscal year 2014-15, amounted to $219,796, of which 
$57,573 (26%) was subsidized by the OMB. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 
 
As per the requirements of the GASB Statements No. 67 and 68, ESR is required, as the pension plan’s 
administrator, to provide to each of its participating employers audited actuarial and financial information used 
in the calculation of their proportionate share of the plan’s net pension liability, pension expense and deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions as of the measurement date. For the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2015, the measurement date is June 30, 2014. In addition, the ESR has to provide all the required 
actuarial and historical data to be reported in the notes to the financial statements of the Municipality and as 
Required Supplementary Information (RSI). 
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14. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
However, as indicated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of the independent auditors’ report, the ESR 
has not provided to the Municipality the audited actuarial and financial information necessary for the proper 
recognition and reporting of its net pension liability as of June 30, 2015. As a result, management has not 
complied with the accounting and financial reporting requirements for pensions that are provided to the 
employees of state and local governmental employers through pension plans trusts that comply with the 
criteria set forth in the GASB Statement No. 68. The ESR has informed its participating employers that the 
audited actuarial and financial data will be available in a future date during the calendar year 2016. The 
effects of this departure from U.S. generally accepted accounting principles in the assets, liabilities, deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources and net position of the Municipality’s governmental activities cannot be 
determined at this time. 
 

15. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 15, the Municipality is required to cover annually the 3% 
increase in the retirement plan of its retired employees, as required by Commonwealth’s laws. Also, the 
Municipality is required to finance costs related to the application of certain “Special Laws” issued by the 
Commonwealth Government. Those Special Laws granted increases in pensions and other benefits to retired 
employees of the Municipality such as medicines bonus, Christmas bonuses and death benefits. However, 
beginning July 1, 2013, Act No. 3 of 2013 eliminated all Special Law benefits to future retirees. 

 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the costs related to these post-employment benefits amounted to 
$270,637, of which $145,000 (53%) was subsidized by OMB. These benefits are recorded as expenditures in 
the general fund. 

 

16. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Property Division is responsible of assuring that the Municipality’s property is properly insured.  Annually, 
the Property Division compiles the information of all property owned and its respective market value.  After 
evaluating this information, the Property Division submits the data regarding the Municipality’s properties to 
its private insurance broker so they can request quotes for the various insurance policies. The insurance 
companies that meet the Municipality’s criteria are selected for each fiscal year. Settled claims have not 
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three (3) fiscal years. 
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17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

A. Federal grants: 
 

The Municipality participates in a number of Federal Financial Assistance Programs. Although the 
Municipality's grant programs have been audited in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit 
Act of 1996, through June 30, 2015, these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits 
by the granting agencies and the resolution of previously identified questioned costs.  The amount, if any, 
of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grating agencies cannot be determined at this time, 
although the Municipality expects such amounts, if any, not to be material. 
 

B. Claims and lawsuits:  
 

The Municipality is a defendant in several legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of the 
Municipality’s activities. Certain of these claims are covered by insurance. The administration believes 
that the ultimate liability, if any, would not be significant. As a result, the accompanying financial 
statements do not include adjustments, if any, that could result from the resolution of these legal 
proceedings. 

 

With respect to pending and threatened litigation, the Municipality has reported liabilities of $32,975 for 
awarded or anticipated unfavorable judgments in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. This 
amount was included in the financial statements and represents the amounts estimated as a probable 
liability or a liability with a fix or expected due date, which will require future available financial resources 
for its payments. 

 

It is the management’s opinion, based on the advice of the legal counsel, that the potential claims against 
the Municipality not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial resources for its payment. 

 

18. RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE AND NET POSITION 
The following table disclosed the net change in fund balances and net position at beginning of year as 
previously reported in the financial statements. The beginning balances have been restated as follows: 
 

 
Fund Financial Statements 

  

 

Government-
wide  

Financial 
Statement  

 
Debt 

 
 

 
Other   

  
 

Service 
 

 
 

Governmental   
  

 
Fund 

 
 

 
Funds   

 
Net Position 

   
 

  

  

  Total fund balances/ net position, at beginning 
of year, as previously reported $   10,422,988 

 
 

 
$  5,260,365 

  

 
$  91,801,240 

   
 

  

  

  Correction of errors:          
Understatement of matured bonds and interest 
payable (4,778,315) 

 
 

  

  

 
(4,778,315) 

Overstatement in long term debt         2,557,576 
Overstatement of intergovernmental revenues     86,966    86,966 
Understatement of Christmas bonus        

 
(292,255) 

          

Fund balance/ net position, beginning as 
restated $    5,644,673 

 
 

 
$  5,347,331 

  

 
$  89,375,212 
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19. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
Puerto Rico Fiscal and Economic Growth Plan 
 
On September 9, 2015, the Working Group for the Fiscal and Economic Recovery of Puerto Rico established 
by the Governor Alejandro García Padilla by executive order EO 2015-022 submitted the Fiscal and 
Economic Growth Plan (FEGP), setting forth economic development, structural, fiscal and institutional reform 
measures intended to meaningfully reduce the Commonwealth’s projected financing gaps. In order to ensure 
compliance with the FEGP measures, the Working group proposes the implementation of a control board and 
new budgetary regulations, pursuant to proposed legislations known as the Fiscal Responsibility and 
Economic Revitalization Act (FRERA). The reform measures proposed by the FEGP, including the creation of 
the control board, have been submitted to the Commonwealth Legislature for review and final approval. 
 
New Guidelines for the Calculation of the Contribution In Lieu of Taxes (“CELI”) 
 
On October 16, 2015, the Puerto Rico Commission of Energy (“CEPR”) approved the new guidelines for the 
energetic subsidy (contribution) received by the 78 municipalities of the Commonwealth from the Puerto Rico 
Electric Power Authority (PREPA) in lieu of the payment of municipal license taxes (“CELI”). These guidelines 
limit to the subsidy to be received by the municipalities, by establishing a maximum threshold amount of 
energy consumption charges that can be incurred by the municipalities. Any charges in excess of that 
maximum threshold will be paid by the municipalities based on the prevailing service rates in effect during the 
billing period. If the municipalities do not pay the amounts billed, they are subject to a possible service 
cancellation by the PREPA. 
 
In addition to these energy consumption limits, the CELI will not be applicable to every municipal property or 
installation. It will only be available for those facilities used for the rendering of not-for-profit services to the 
community; for corporations that provide public health services; and for the consumption charges incurred by 
the public lighting infrastructure. Those municipal installations and properties used for for-profit activities or 
occupied by not-for-profit entities that do not provide municipal services or by persons and businesses that 
are not municipal entities are excluded from the CELI subsidy. 
 
Finally, the guidelines require that the municipalities implement efficiency and conservation measures for a 
reduction of 15% in the energy consumption to be incurred in the next three fiscal years. All of these 
requirements are effective beginning November 16, 2015 (fiscal year 2015-16). 
 
Application of Chapter 9 of the Federal Bankruptcy Law to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its 
Instrumentalities 
 
A law project has been submitted to the Congress of the United States of America requesting the application 
of Chapter 9 of the Federal Bankruptcy Law to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its instrumentalities. 
The benefits available under Chapter 9 would permit the Commonwealth to restructure its debt with its 
bondholders, with the purpose of decreasing the interest costs and debt  
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19. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (CONTINUED) 
 

service requirements that consume a significant part of the Commonwealth’s operating budget. During the 
past months, the Governor and Resident Commissioner of Puerto Rico have been persistently lobbying for 
the approval of this law project, including various public hearings in Congress, arguing that the 
Commonwealth will incur in a default of its debt service requirements for the fiscal year 2015-16 citing that 
both the Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico and the Puerto Rico Treasury Department are 
suffering from severe cash flow shortfalls that put in jeopardy the fulfillment of their debt obligations. The 
continuing economic and fiscal crisis of the island will seriously affect the amount and quality of services 
provided to the citizenry and the amount of subsidies and funds provided by the state to the municipalities.    
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Actual Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

 Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Positive 
 Original Final (See Note 1) (Negative) 
     

REVENUES:     

Property taxes $      9,778,151 $  10,641,551 $    10,641,551 $                     -    
Municipal license tax 3,779,363 3,779,363 4,160,960 381,597 
Municipal sales tax 2,704,000 2,704,000 3,279,573 575,573 
Licenses, permits and other local taxes 1,125,000 1,125,000 1,727,428 602,428 
Intergovernmental 2,698,942 2,698,942 2,731,646 32,704 
Rent of property 80,000 80,000 312,444 232,444 
Fines and forfeitures 35,100 35,100 46,133 11,033 
Interest 261,000 261,000 291,950 30,950 
Miscellaneous                 311,000               311,000               260,467            (50,533) 
     

Total revenues            20,772,556               21,635,956          23,452,152         1,816,196 
     
Budgeted Carryover (1)                            -          3,588,008 3,588,008                    - 

 

    
Total revenues after carryover            20,772,556               25,223,964          27,040,160              1,816,196 

     
EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES: 

    

Current:     
General government 12,298,815 15,218,144 14,295,177 922,967 
Public safety 1,973,836 1,855,817 1,737,753 118,064 
Public works 5,590,974 7,129,804 6,952,388 177,416 
Culture and recreation 828,171 939,439 782,388 157,051 
Operating transfer to other funds                  80,760                 80,760                 80,760                         -   

     
Total expenditures, encumbrances and other financing uses           20,772,556          25,223,964          23,848,466          1,375,498 

     

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

 
 

$                         - 

 
 
$                        - 

 
 

$         3,191,694 

 
 

$       3,191,694 
  

Explanation of Differences:  
  
Sources/inflows of resources:  
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) available for appropriation” from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 27,040,160 
Differences-budget to USGAAP:  
Budget carryover   (3,588,008) 
Non-budgetary transfer-in 307,858 
GAAP adjustments to revenues         306,232 

  
Total revenues and other financing sources as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances 

 
$ 24,066,242 

  

Uses/outflows of resources:  
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) total charges to appropriations” from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 23,848,466 
Differences-budget to USGAAP:  
Prior year encumbrances recorded as current year expenditures for GAAP basis 748,909 
Current year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes (845,364) 
Non-budgetary transfer-out 161,010 
GAAP adjustments to expenditures      1,052,182 

Total expenditures and other financing uses as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances 

 
$ 24,965,203 

  

(1) Represents fund balances carried over from prior years  
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1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

Budgetary Control 
 

The Municipality’s annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which is not in 
accordance with USGAAP, and represents departmental appropriations recommended by the Mayor and 
approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.  Amendments to the budget 
require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as 
Mayor’s Resolutions, do not require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. 
 

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund. For budgetary 
purposes, encumbrance accounting is used.  The encumbrances (i.e., purchase orders, contracts) are 
considered expenditures when incurred. For USGAAP reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at 
year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities 
because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. 
 

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse at the end of such 
fiscal year.  Other appropriations, mainly capital project appropriations, are continuing accounts for which 
the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward 
and made available for current spending. 
 
The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is the budget 
ordinance at June 30, 2015 representing the original budget. There were no supplemental appropriations 
for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
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Line Item #  Description  

Housing  
Choice 

Vouchers 
(CFDA No. 14.871) 

  BALANCE SHEET   

     

Assets  Current Assets Cash   

111  Cash – Unrestricted  $       276,298 

113  Cash - Other Restricted  - 

100  Total Cash  276,298 

     

121  Accounts Receivable  -  PHA Projects  13,002 

122  Accounts Receivable  -  HUD Other Projects  4,214 

125  Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous  1,912 

128  Fraud Recovery  75,498 

128.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud  (52,666) 

150  Total Current Assets  41,960 

     

  Non-Current Assets   

  Fixed Assets:   

164  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration  60,233 

166  Accumulated Depreciation  (58,109) 

160  Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation  2,124 

     

180  Total Non-Current Assets  2,124 

     

290  Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources  $         320,382 

     
Liabilities 
and Equity 

 
Liabilities 

 
 

     

312  Accounts Payable (less 90 days)  22,355 

332  Accounts Payable – PHA Projects  - 

333  Accounts Payable – Other Government   7,369 

345  Other Current Liabilities  4,204 

310  Total Current Liabilities  33,928 

     

     

353  Non-Current Liabilities - Other  28,640 

350  Total Non-Current Liabilities  28,640 

     

300  Total Liabilities  62,568 

     

400  Deferred Inflow of Resources  - 

     

Equity  Equity   

508.4  Net Investment in Capital Assets  2,124 

511.4  Restricted Net Position  - 

512.4  Unrestricted Net Position  255,690 

513  Total Equity - Net Assets/Position  257,814 

     

600  Total Liab., Def. Inflow of Res., and Equity - Net Assets/Position  $        320,382 

 

See notes to the Financial Data Schedule 
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Line Item #  Description  

Housing  
Choice Vouchers 
(CFDA No. 14.871) 

  INCOME STATEMENT   

     

70600  HUD PHA Operating Grants  $        1,951,263 

71100  Investment Income - Unrestricted  107 

71400  Fraud Recovery  6,442 

71500  Other Revenue  77,654 

70000  Total Revenues  2,035,466 

     

  Expenses Administrative:   

91100  Administrative Salaries  109,898 

91200  Auditing Fees  2,930 

91500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Administrative  18,097 

91600  Offices Expenses  36,423 

91800  Travel  - 

91000  Total Operating - Administrative  167,348 

     

96200  Other General Expenses  15,318 

96600  Bad Debt - Other  7,954 

96000  Total Other General Expenses  23,272 

     

96900  Total Operating Expenses  190,620 

     

97000  Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses  1,844,846 

     

97300  Housing Assistance Payments   1,777,277 

97350  HAP Portability-In  60,290 

97400  Depreciation Expense  1,640 

     

90000  Total Expenses  2,029,827 

     

10000  Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenues Over (Under) Total Expenses  $          5,639 

     

  Memo Account Information:   

     

*11030  Beginning Equity  $ 252,175 

11040  Prior Period Adjustment  $             - 

*11170  Administrative Fee Equity  $ 257,814 

*11180  Housing Assistance Payments Equity  $             - 

     

*11190  Unit Months Available  3,324 

     

*11210  Number of Unit Months Available  3,254 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

See notes to the Financial Data Schedule
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1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

The accompanying Financial Data Schedule (FDS) presents the financial position of the Section 8 Housing 
Choice Voucher Program, administered by the Municipality. The FDS was created in order to standardize 
the financial information reported by the Public Housing Authorities (PHA) to the Real Estate Assessment 
Center (REAC) as required by the Uniform Financial Reporting Standards (UFRS). REAC is the US 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) national management center created to assess the 
condition of HUD owned and assisted properties. The UFRS are rules to implement requirements of 24 
CFR, Part 5, Subpart H, for the electronic filing of financial information to HUD. 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

In accordance with the guidelines for reporting and attestation requirements of UFRS, the accompanying 
FDS is included as information supplementary to the financial statements. It was prepared using the 
accrual basis of accounting, as required by REAC regulations. 
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Federal Grantor/Pass-through 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

 Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

 Pass-through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

  
 

Expenditures  

 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE: 

     

      

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Department of Education:  

   
 

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558  Not Available  $      179,966 
      

      

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture     179,966 
      

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN 
DEVELOPMENT:  

   

 
      

Direct Program:      
Community Development Block Grant – Section 
108 Loan Guarantees 14.248 

  
Not Available 

 
49,204 

 
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 

 
14.871 

  
Not Available 

 
1,951,263 

      
Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Office of the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs:  

   
 

Community Development Block Grant - State 
Program 14.228 

  
Not Available 

 
181,565 

      
Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of San Juan: 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 
(HOPWA) 14.241 

  
 
 

Not Available 

 

28,826 
      

      

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

    
2,210,858 

 

U.S DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 

    

 

 
Direct Program: 
Federal Transit- Formula Grants (Recovery Act 
Funded) 

 
 
 
20.507 

    
 
 
 

92,810 
      

 
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 

     
92,810 
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Federal Grantor/Pass-through 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

  
Federal CFDA 

Number 

 Pass-through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number 

  
 
 

Expenditures  
      

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES: 

     

      

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto   Rico 
Governor’s Office (OGAVE) (Cluster   of Programs) 

     

Special Programs for Aging – Title III, Part C – 
Supportive Services and Seniors Center 

 
93.044 

  
Not Available 

  
130,861 

Special Programs for Aging – Title III, Part C - 
Nutrition Services 

 
93.045 

  
Not Available 

  
18,647 

      

      

Head Start Cluster:      
Direct Program:      

Early Head Start 93.600  Not Available  1,193,655 
      

Community Services Block Grant 93.569  Not Available  2,211 
      

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Administration for Children and Families 
(ACUDEN): 

     

Head Start Program 93.600  Not Available  3,083,233 
      

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services 

     
4,428,607 

      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL 
AWARDS 

    
$6,912,241   

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule 
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1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
Municipality under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2015. The information 
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may 
differ from the amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. Because 
the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Municipality, it is not intended to and 
does not present the financial position and changes in net assets of the Municipality. 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for 
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCV). Expenditures are recognized when the related liability 
is incurred following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87 Cost Principles for State, Local and 
Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. Expenditures for HCV Program are reported on a statutory basis as required by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Such expenditures should equal the net ACC subsidy for 
the PHA’s fiscal period. 

 

The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number is a program identification number. The first 
two digits identify the federal department or agency that administers the program and the last three 
numbers are assigned by numerical sequence. 

 

State or local government redistributions of federal awards to the Municipality, known as “pass–through 
awards”, should be treated by the Municipality as though they were received directly from the federal 
government. OMB Circular A-133 requires the schedule to include the name of the pass–through entity and 
the identifying number assigned by the pass-through entity for the federal awards received as a sub 
recipient. Numbers identified as N/A are not applicable and numbers identified as N/AV are not available. 

 

3. RECONCILIATION OF EXPENDITURES PRESENTED IN THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF 
FEDERAL AWARDS TO THE EXPENDITURES PRESENTED IN THE BASIC FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

 
 
 
 

Description 

 
 

Special 
Revenue Fund 

Head Start 

 
 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

 
 
 
 

Total 

 
Per Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards 

 
 

$      4,456,854 

 
 

$  2,455,387 

 
 

$   6,912,241 
 
 
Non - federal programs expenditures 

 
 

- 

 
 

1,707,895 

 
 

1,707,895 

 
Total expenditures in the basic financial 
statements 

 
 

$     4,456,854 

 
 

$  4,163,282 

 
 

$   8,620,136 

 

 

4. SECTION 108 LOAN PAYMENTS 
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Municipality paid the amount of $306,000 in principal as 
repayment of Section 108 Loan Guarantee Assistance Notes (LGA). 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and the Municipal Legislature 
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado 
Dorado, Puerto Rico 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Autonomous 
Municipality of Dorado, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial 

statements, which collectively comprise Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s basic financial statements 
and have issued our report thereon dated March 7, 2016. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be material weakness as item 2015-001. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor 
and the Municipal Legislature 
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado 
Dorado, Puerto Rico 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 

We have audited the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2015. The Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s major federal programs are identified in 
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 

Management’s Responsibility 
 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Autonomous Municipality of 
Dorado’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Autonomous 
Municipality of Dorado’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  
 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Autonomous Municipality of 
Dorado’s compliance. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 (CONTINUED) 

 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 

In our opinion, the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.  
 

Other Matters 
 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be 
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as items 2015-002. Our opinion on each major program is not modified with 
respect to these matters. 
 

Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audits is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Autonomous Municipality of 
Dorado’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 

Management of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Autonomous Municipality of Dorado’s internal control over 
compliance.  
 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
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Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 
for FFS 

Qualified for GWFS 

   

Internal control over financial reporting:   
Material weakness identified? Yes   X No    
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be 
material weaknesses? 

 
Yes    

 
None reported   X 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes   X No    
 

Federal awards 

Internal Control over major programs:   
Material weakness identified? Yes    No  X 
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be 
material weaknesses? 

 
Yes   X 

 
None reported 

   

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 
  for major programs: 

 
Unmodified 

   

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
  to be reported in accordance with Circular 
  A-133, Section .510(a)?               

 
 
Yes    

 
 
No   X 

 

Identification of major programs: 

 CFDA  Number  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

   Head Start Cluster: 
 93.600  Head Start Program 
 93.600  Early Head Start 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
  between Type A and Type B programs 

  
$ 300,000 

  

 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

  
Yes 

 
No   X 
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Section II – Financial Statements Findings 
 

This significant deficiency in internal controls is considered an instance of noncompliance (NC). 
 

Finding Reference  2015-001 
 

Requirement  Recognition and Reporting of Net Pension Liability – Cost Sharing Pension 
     Plans (MW) 

 

Statement of Condition Management has not complied with the accounting and financial reporting 
requirements for pensions that are provided to the employees of state and local 
governmental employers through pension plans trusts that comply with the criteria 
set forth in the GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions. The amount by which this departure would affect the assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position of the 
Municipality’s governmental activities has not been determined. 

   

In addition, the Municipality’s financial statements do not disclose the descriptive 
information about the pension plans through which the pensions are provided 
required by the GASB Statement No. 68 for cost-sharing employers. Also, 
management has omitted historical pension information that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America required to be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. 

 
 

Criteria GASB Statement No. 68 states the accounting and financial reporting requirements 
for pension plans provided to employees of state and local governments that are 
administered through cost-sharing pension plan trusts that comply with the criteria 
set forth in the Statement. This requires that the Municipality report in its financial 
statements its proportionate share of the collective net pension liability, pension 
expense and deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions as of 
the measurement date. It also requires detailed disclosures related to the actuarial 
and financial information used in the calculation of the net pension liability and the 
reporting of historical pension data as Required Supplementary Information. 

 

Cause of Condition The Municipality’s pension plan administrator has not provided the audited actuarial 
and financial information necessary for the proper recognition and reporting of its net 
pension liability as of June 30, 2015. 

 

Effect of Condition The Municipality’s Government-Wide Financial Statements does not present fairly 
the financial position of the governmental activities, and the change in financial 
position of the Municipality. 
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Section II – Financial Statements Findings 
 

Finding Reference  2015-001 (Continued) 
 

Recommendation We recommend the Municipality maintains a constant communication with the 
pension plan’s administrator, the Commonwealth’s Employees Retirement System 
Administration, in order to obtain the necessary audited actuarial and financial 
information necessary to comply with the requirements of the GASB Statement No. 
68. 

 

Questioned Cost None 
 

Management Response  

and Corrective Action We concur with the auditors’ recommendations. The Municipality is closely 
monitoring the actions of the Commonwealth’s Employees Retirement System 
Administration in order to make sure to obtain the audited information required by 
this standard. 

 
Implementation Date:           Still in process 
 

Responsible Person:  Mr. Luis Sierra Salgado,  
Finance Department Director 
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 Section III- Major Federal Award Program Findings and Question Costs 
 

Finding Reference 2015-002 
 

Program Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services; Pass through State – Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Administration for Children and Families. 

 
Requirement Cash Management 

 

Statement of Condition During our Cash Management Test to Head Start Program, we found the following 
exception: 

 
a. We noted that the Program requested funds that were not disbursed on a 

reasonable lapse of time. 
 

Criteria Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (7), requires a cash 
management system in order to minimize the time elapsed between the transfer of 
funds from the U.S. Treasury and the disbursements made by the grantee 

 

Cause of Condition There are no adequate internal controls to assure that funds requested to the 
federal agency are disbursed for immediate needs. 

 

Effect of Condition The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart 
C, Section 92.20 (b) (7). 

 

Recommendation We recommend management to follow cash management system procedures  
developed by it in order to assure that funds requested are disbursed as required 
by the regulation. 

 

Questioned Costs   None 
 

Management Response 

and Corrective Action The Program will establish a double verification procedure for the supporting 

documents related to each fund request in order to assure its correction and 

accuracy. Also, a daily verification of the bank account balances will be performed 

to avoid unnecessary or excessive requests. 
 

 Implementation date: February, 2016 
 

 Responsible Person: Sarahí Meléndez – Program Director 
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Original 
Finding 
Number CFDA No. 

Current Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findings  - Part III Findings 
(As required by OMB Circular A-133) 

 
14-01 

 
 

 
93.600 

 
During our Cash Management Test to Head Start Program, we found the 
following exception: a) We noted that the Program requested funds that were 
not disbursed on a reasonable lapse of time. 
 
No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for the 
current year. Finding Reference 2015-002. 
 

 
13-02 

 

 
93.600 

 
During our Cash Management Test to Head Start Program, we found the 
following exceptions: (a) We noted that the Program requested funds that were 
not disbursed on a reasonable lapse of time. (b) During two (2) months the 
bank reconciliations reflected an overdraft. In our Cash Management Test of 
ARRA Early Head Start Program, we found the following:  (a) We noted that 
the Program requested funds that were not disbursed on a reasonable lapse of 
time. (b) During three (3) months the bank reconciliations reflected an 
overdraft. 
 
Partial corrective action was taken. See finding reference 2015-002. 
 

 
12-02 

 
93.600 
93.709 

 
During our Cash Management Test to Head Start Program, we found the 
following exceptions: (a) We noted that the Program requested funds that were 
not disbursed on a reasonable lapse of time. (b) During two (2) months the 
bank reconciliations reflected an overdraft. In our Cash Management Test of 
ARRA Early Head Start Program, we found the following:  (a) We noted that 
the Program requested funds that were not disbursed on a reasonable lapse of 
time. (b) During three (3) months the bank reconciliations reflected an 
overdraft. 
 
No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for the 
current year. Finding Reference 2015-002. 
 

 


